
From: James McFadden
To: Lane, Roger
Cc: Allan, Majid; Johnson, Sarah; George Boyer
Subject: Re: Follow up items for Boyer rezone petition 11791
Date: Sunday, February 27, 2022 9:21:21 PM
Attachments: 533 Waterloo Site 02.25.22.pdf

Letter of Intent Dane Co 02.26.22.pdf

Roger,

Thank you so much for your careful review the American Auto submittal and have revised and clarified the plans accordingly.

1. The lighting was too bright and has been reworked as illustrated in the plan attached with a more neighborly light level.
2.  It was not shown on the general site plan (it has been added) but there is a retaining wall under the western edge of the parking area. The parking lot has been narrowed a foot increasing the set back fro
5’ to 6’ to allow construction of this wall.
3. Actually the grading one moves to the north and south of the garage the garage floor elevation remains unchanged at 854.6 (see C-100 & C-200)
4.  The plan has been revised to show (10) stalls immediately adjacent to the garage and an additional (2) to the north. 
5.  On average 3 cars are brought on site per each of the six working days - most will be driven in and the remainder delivered by truck.They brought into the shop and inspected on arrival (this takes
approximately 30 minutes) and determination is made to prepare them for sale on location, sell to a wholesaler or dispose of them. Historically a third are repaired, detailed etc (three day process) and put
on the lot for sale. Typical turnover is 7 days. Three cars come in per day, two are sold offsite in short order and one is prepped and  then sold within a week.Of the 34 cars for sale maybe 20 will be retail
and the remainder awaiting pickup by a wholesaler.
6.  The concept is place the broad relatively low juniper in front (30” high when planted & 48” when mature) and taller cedar to the rear (8’ when planted & 20’+ mature). This is now noted on the plan
7. You are correct the privacy fences should be taller. There are now shown as 8’ tall. The base of wood fence sits on the new elevated grade and can stay at 6'
8.   Per you previous suggestion there is no longer a sign at the entry
9.  Accessible parking is per the general plan

Also note that parking configuration has been updated.

Thank you for your patience in all of this. Please do take a look at revised letter and plans and let us know what further questions and suggestion you might have.

Thanks.

James

James McFadden, Architect
McFadden & Company, LLC
380 West Washington Avenue
Madison, WI 53703
608.251.1350

On Feb 21, 2022, at 5:01 PM, Lane, Roger <lane.roger@countyofdane.com> wrote:

Dear Mr. McFadden,
 
There are a few items that County Staff are concerned with.  The submittal may not address the concerns raised at the public hearing.
 

1.       The lighting design is extremely intense and may cause a nuisance to neighboring residential properties.  The exterior light poles are 25 feet tall and the illumination level are over 20-footcandles in
areas.  To fit into the residential neighborhood, staff would suggest having a maximum of 16-foot poles with a maximum illumination of 5-foot candles.  The wall packs are extremely intense.

2.       The grading plan shows that there is 3 ½ feet of elevation difference at the west side of the property. Please provide details to account for the elevation difference.  Please note that any alteration
of grade within 5 feet of the property line will need additional approvals.

3.       The grading plan shows that the floor of the building will need to be raised 1 ½ feet.  A new floor has recently been poured in the building.  Please provide information on how the finished floor
elevation of the building will be raised to facilitate the grading plan.

4.       The Dane County Parking Ordinances requires 3 parking stalls per garage bay for auto repair.  The building contains 4 bays and the site plan on shows 7 stalls.  Please provide 12 parking stalls for
customer/employees.  The outdoor vehicle display area does not provide any area for patrons to park.  Please provide a designated parking area for patrons.

5.       The narrative explains that there will be approximately 20 vehicles delivered weekly to the site.  Please explain where all the vehicles will be stored.
6.       The site plan shows adequate landscaping for the front of the property.  Please provide the height of the evergreens at time of planting.
7.       The wood fence or the screen fence does not provide a height of the fences.  Please provide height and provide details on the style of screening that will be used.  Also, there is a 2 to 4 foot

elevation difference between the base of the privacy fence and the base of the finished grade of the car sales area.  A 6-foot privacy fence may not be an effective screen.  Provide cross-section
elevation detail of the west property line showing fence, retaining wall, and car sales area.

8.       Site plan C-100 shows a sign at the front of the lot.  Is this correct?
9.       Handicap parking stall location are different between the civil plans and the general site plan.  Please provide clarification.

 
Roger Lane
Dane County Zoning Administrator
 
From: James McFadden <james@mcfaddenarchitect.com> 
Sent: Friday, February 18, 2022 12:22 AM
To: Allan, Majid <Allan@countyofdane.com>
Cc: Lane, Roger <lane.roger@countyofdane.com>
Subject: Re: Follow up items for Boyer rezone petition 11791
 

CAUTION: External Email - Beware of unknown links and attachments. Contact Helpdesk at 266-4440 if unsure

 

Majid, 
 
With your advice we have updated the materials to include new and / or additional information on storm water management, lighting, screening, signage and the holding tank and have
expanded the Letter of Intent.
 
Please take a look at the attached and let me if you see anything missing, clarified or approved.
 
Thanks.
 
James
 
James McFadden, Architect
McFadden & Company, LLC
380 West Washington Avenue
Madison, WI 53703
608.251.1350
 
 

On Feb 3, 2022, at 3:42
PM, Allan, Majid <Allan@countyofdane.com> wrote:
 
Hi James,
 
Good speaking with you the other day. Below is a list of some of the follow up items we discussed that I understand you and Mr. Boyer will be working on over the next couple weeks.
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Watts


Luminaire Schedule
Symbol Qty Tag Label Arrangement Description [MANUFAC] LLF Luminaire 


Lumens
Luminaire 
Watts


Total 


3 WP ES1-24H-MV-NW-W-XX-350 Single ES1-24H-MV-NW-W-XX-350 LEOTEK 
ELECTRONICS 
USA LLC


0.950 3301 28.71 86.13


3 OA4 AR13-48N-MV-NW-4-XX-060 Single AR13-48N-MV-NW-4-XX-060, 16' SSS Leotek 
Electronics 
USA LLC


0.950 5960 40 120


5 OA3 AR13-48N-MV-NW-3-XX-060 Single AR13-48N-MV-NW-3-XX-060, 16' SSS Leotek 
Electronics 
USA LLC


0.950 5880 40 200


Calculation Summary
Label CalcType Units Avg Max Min Avg/Min Max/Min
Parking Lot_Workplane Illuminance Fc 1.20 15.8 0.0 N.A. N.A.
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2.15.4 6.4 1.55.73.3 1.54.6 2.81.9 0.01.11.41.73.5


0.02.0 1.6 1.4 1.4 1.3


0.0


1.0 0.0 0.0


1.2


0.0 0.0


0.0 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.5 0.8 0.0


0.01.9 1.8 1.8 1.9 0.0 0.01.5 0.03.5


0.60.3


2.7


0.2


0.0 0.1 0.2


0.01.2


0.0 0.0 0.0


0.0 0.1 0.2 0.3 2.20.8 2.72.0 3.6 5.7 6.4 5.7 4.6


0.0


0.5


2.80.7 4.2 2.7 2.0 1.6 1.67.7 2.40.9 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0


0.0 0.1
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5.4 0.0
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0.0
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0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00.1 0.00.0
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0.1 6.14.53.12.21.71.30.80.50.3


0.8


0.1 4.80.00.0


0.00.00.00.00.00.04.03.8


0.1


0.0


7.0


1.01.00.90.60.70.40.20.10.1


6.8


0.0


6.3 0.00.00.00.00.00.02.42.93.5


5.4


0.0


0.3


3.6


4.34.95.04.13.32.92.51.81.1 3.90.4 5.10.20.10.10.0


0.00.00.00.00.00.0


0.6


0.1


7.5


5.95.74.33.12.41.91.40.90.5


3.8


0.2 4.40.10.00.0


0.00.00.00.00.00.06.8


0.3


2.5 0.10.10.41.43.87.312.615.511.1


0.9


3.6 0.02.32.83.95.05.55.33.82.51.71.2 6.2


1.0 4.02.62.02.02.32.83.44.24.13.0


0.0


1.3


0.0


0.70.50.30.20.10.00.00.00.0


0.3


1.9


0.0


0.8


2.01.41.00.60.30.20.10.10.0 4.40.0 6.0


0.00.00.00.00.01.72.33.24.86.7


0.0 0.0


1.1


0.20.10.00.00.00.0


0.00.00.03.0 0.0


0.5


13.211.26.83.82.52.43.14.66.26.4 0.0


0.2 0.50.71.22.13.44.94.83.52.0


1.5


0.4 0.90.20.10.10.0


0.00.00.00.10.10.2


0.7 0.2


4.3


0.30.20.10.10.10.0


0.00.00.10.5 0.10.6 0.30.61.23.34.85.74.93.11.7


1.4


0.1


6.8


0.3


0.00.00.00.10.10.00.00.00.0


0.1


6.6


0.1


5.43.41.80.90.60.50.50.71.2


1.1


0.0


1.2


2.5


3.86.26.35.33.41.80.90.60.50.0 0.7 0.72.44.05.85.74.72.50.90.40.30.2 0.5


0.0 1.11.31.61.71.41.00.50.20.1


0.5


0.1 0.60.0


0.00.00.00.10.10.10.20.30.9


0.1 0.8


0.10.00.00.0


0.00.00.00.00.10.10.9 0.30.8 1.41.92.11.81.41.10.90.70.5


3.3


0.1


1.6


1.8


0.10.10.20.20.41.02.53.74.7 0.02.5 0.01.00.60.50.50.71.11.72.53.63.6 3.9


2.4


6.1


2.61.91.31.00.60.50.60.81.0


0.1


1.7 2.72.41.81.20.50.20.10.10.10.00.0 1.3


3.9 2.72.01.51.20.80.70.70.81.2


1.2


2.6 1.83.92.71.60.50.30.20.10.10.10.0 1.8


0.0


2.5


3.55.25.03.82.10.70.40.20.2


3.3


0.1


2.7 0.00.10.10.10.10.20.20.30.9


0.1


0.1


0.1


0.00.20.10.10.10.10.0


0.00.00.1


1.2


0.1


1.9


0.20.40.81.21.61.71.61.41.31.2 0.1


1.3


0.7


0.10.10.10.20.30.81.41.92.20.5 1.6 0.01.21.00.80.81.01.21.41.82.62.6 1.9


2.6 0.90.60.50.50.71.22.54.36.1


2.2


5.5 5.31.00.00.00.00.10.10.0


0.00.00.1


7.1 0.0


7.05.52.61.00.40.00.00.10.10.0


1.8 0.03.4 0.10.10.20.30.71.43.86.16.3


0.2


0.0


1.0


0.10.10.10.0


0.00.10.10.10.10.2


0.3


0.4


0.4


2.53.74.73.92.61.71.10.70.60.6 0.3


0.5


1.7


0.30.61.23.34.75.74.93.11.80.2 0.6 0.10.50.71.22.44.15.95.94.92.50.9 1.0


0.0


0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0


0.0


0.0


0.0


0.3


0.1 0.1 0.2 0.1 0.4 0.7 1.3 3.6 6.2 6.5 5.5 3.70.0


0.7


1.5


0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0


0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.2 0.20.4 0.31.3 3.3 5.1 5.8 5.4 3.4 2.0 1.1 0.6 0.5 0.4


0.6


0.3


0.0


2.0


5.6 3.6 2.0 0.9 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.16.4 0.03.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0


0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1


0.1


0.0


0.0


0.4 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0


7.0


0.01.0 0.0


0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1


0.0


0.41.7 2.2 2.6 2.2 1.7 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.6


0.0


0.50.5 0.3 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0


0.0 0.0 0.0


0.6


0.01.3 1.2 1.0 0.9 0.8 0.8 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.3 0.1 0.1


1.1


0.0


0.6


0.0 0.0 0.0


0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.5


0.2


0.0


4.4


0.1


0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.4 0.4 0.6 1.1 2.7


0.0


5.1


0.0


2.9 1.8 1.2 0.7 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2 0.13.9


0.6


0.3


0.3 0.4 0.5 0.6 1.1 2.1 3.0 3.7 3.2 2.3 1.6


0.0


0.80.1 0.6 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.01.2


0.00.8 0.5 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0


0.1


0.01.6 0.0 0.0 0.0


0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1


0.00.0


0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0


1.00.0 1.20.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.6 1.2 1.6 1.9


1.0


0.0


0.2


0.2


0.0 0.1 0.2 0.5 0.8 1.0 1.1 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.60.0 0.30.0 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.00.5


0.0


0.3


1.2 1.4 1.2 1.0 0.8 0.7 0.5 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1


0.0


0.00.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0


0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0


0.0


0.9 0.00.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.3 0.5 1.0 2.9 4.3 5.5 4.90.0 1.80.0 0.5 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0


0.1


3.1


0.1


0.0


0.6 1.3 3.5 5.7 6.1 5.4 3.5 1.9 0.9 0.5 0.3


0.0


0.2


0.0


0.1 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0


0.0


0.2


0.1


0.0


0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0


0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0


0.0


0.1


0.0


0.2 0.2 0.7 1.5 2.3 2.9 2.5 1.7 1.2 0.9 0.5


0.2


0.1


3.2


0.0 0.0


0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.2 0.4 0.02.2


0.2


4.3 3.7 2.4 1.5 0.9 0.5 0.3 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.00.8


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
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Product No. & Type 
of LEDs Voltage Color 


Temperature1 �ŝƐƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶ &ŝŶŝƐŚ2 Drive 
�ƵƌƌĞŶƚ3 KƉƟŽŶƐ


ES1 24H
48H


MV
HV


120-277V
347-480V


WW
NW
CW


3000K
4000K
5000K


W


FT


Wide


Forward 
Throw


BK


DB


GY 


WH


Black


Dark 
Bronze


Gray


White


350
530
700


350mA
530mA
700mA


PC6


MSL2
MSL34


EM5


FSIR100


Photo Control
DŽƟŽŶ�^ĞŶƐŽƌ͕ �>Ϯ�>ĞŶƐ
DŽƟŽŶ�^ĞŶƐŽƌ͕ �>ϯ�>ĞŶƐ
�ŵĞƌŐĞŶĐǇ��ĂƩĞƌǇ�
^ǇƐƚĞŵ�Ͳ��ŽůĚ�tĞĂƚŚĞƌ�
Rated (-20ºC/ -4ºF)
DŽƟŽŶ�^ĞŶƐŽƌ�
�ŽŶĮŐƵƌĂƟŽŶ�dŽŽů


Project


Type


Catalog No.


KƌĚĞƌŝŶŐ�/ŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ
^ĂŵƉůĞ��ĂƚĂůŽŐ�EŽ͘��^ϭ�Ϯϰ,�Ds�Et�t��<�ϳϬϬ��D


>ƵŵŝŶĂŝƌĞ��ĂƚĂ


tĞŝŐŚƚ�� ϵ͘ϵ�ůďƐ�΀ϰ͘ϱ�ŬŐ΁
ϭϰ͘ϲ�ůďƐ�΀ϲ͘ϱŬŐ΁�ǁŝƚŚ��D͕�D^�ŽƉƟŽŶƐ


12.1 in


΀ϯϬϳ͘ϰϰ�ŵŵ΁


16.8 in


΀ϰϮϳ͘ϳϴ�ŵ
ŵ
΁


5.4 in


΀ϭϯϴ͘ϯϳ�ŵ
ŵ
΁


�ƐĞƚĂΡ�>���tĂůů�^ĐŽŶĐĞ
ES1


EŽƚĞƐ
ϭ���ŽŶƐƵůƚ�ĨĂĐƚŽƌǇ�ĨŽƌ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ĐŽůŽƌ�ƚĞŵƉĞƌĂƚƵƌĞƐ͘��
Ϯ���ŽŶƐƵůƚ�ĨĂĐƚŽƌǇ�ĨŽƌ�ŶŽŶͲƐƚĂŶĚĂƌĚ�ĮŶŝƐŚ�ŽƉƟŽŶƐ͘�^ĞĞ�ƉĂŐĞ�Ϯ�ĨŽƌ�ƐƉĞĐŝĮĐĂƟŽŶƐ͘
ϯ��&ĂĐƚŽƌǇ�ƐĞƚ�ĚƌŝǀĞ�ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ͕�ŶŽŶͲĮĞůĚ�ĂĚũƵƐƚĂďůĞ͘�ϳϬϬŵ��ŝƐ�ŶŽƚ�ĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞ�ĨŽƌ�ϰϴ,�ǀĞƌƐŝŽŶ͘�ZĞĨĞƌ�ƚŽ�ƉĞƌĨŽƌŵĂŶĐĞ�ĚĂƚĂ�ŽŶ�ƉĂŐĞ�Ϯ͘��ŽŶƐƵůƚ�ĨĂĐƚŽƌǇ�ĨŽƌ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ĚƌŝǀĞ�


ĐƵƌƌĞŶƚ�ŽƉƟŽŶƐ͘
ϰ��DŽƟŽŶ�^ĞŶƐŽƌ�ĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�Ds�ŽŶůǇ͘ �DŽƟŽŶ�^ĞŶƐŽƌ�ĚĞĨĂƵůƚ�ƐĞƫŶŐ�ĚŝŵƐ�ůƵŵŝŶĂŝƌĞ�ƚŽ�ϱϬй�ǁŚĞŶ�ŶŽ�ŵŽƟŽŶ�ŝƐ�ĚĞƚĞĐƚĞĚ�ĨŽƌ�ϱ�ŵŝŶƵƚĞƐ͘�&ŝĞůĚ�ĂĚũƵƐƚĂďůĞ�ƐĞƫŶŐƐ��


ĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞ�ƵƐŝŶŐ�&^/ZϭϬϬ�ŽƉƟŽŶ͘
ϱ���ŵĞƌŐĞŶĐǇ��ĂƩĞƌǇ�^ǇƐƚĞŵ�ĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�Ds�ŽŶůǇ͘ �ϯͲǇĞĂƌ�ůŝŵŝƚĞĚ�ǁĂƌƌĂŶƚǇ�ŽŶ��ŵĞƌŐĞŶĐǇ��ĂƩĞƌǇ�^ǇƐƚĞŵ͘
ϲ���ǀĂŝůĂďůĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�Ds͘ �&Žƌ�,s�ƐƉĞĐŝĨǇ�ĞŝƚŚĞƌ�ϯϰϳs�Žƌ�ϰϴϬs͘
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Product LED
Code Voltage Nominal Color 


Temperature �ŝƐƚƌŝďƵƟŽŶ Finish1 Output Code 2 KƉƟŽŶƐ


AR13 48N MV
HV


120-277V
347-480V


WW


NW
CW


3000K


4000K
5000K


2
3
4
5
AFR


Type 2
Type 3
Type 4
Type 5
Auto Front Row


BK
DB


DB1


WH
GY
NA


Black
Dark 
Bronze 
(RAL6022)


Dark 
Bronze 
(RAL8019)


White
Gray
Natural 
Aluminum


030
040
055
080
100
120
150
170
190


030
040
060
080
100
120
160
190
200


BLS3


FOC4


PCR5


PCR75


PCR7-CR6


MSL77


MSL37


SP2
PND18


PND28


PND38


ORR
ORL
WL


Back Light Shield (Factory 
Installed)
Fixed Output Code
NEMA Photocontrol 
Receptacle
ANSI 7-wire Photocontrol 
Receptacle
Control Ready 7-wire
Photocontrol Receptacle
DŽƟŽŶ�^ĞŶƐŽƌ�ǁŝƚŚ�>ϳ�>ĞŶƐ
DŽƟŽŶ�^ĞŶƐŽƌ�ǁŝƚŚ�>ϯ�>ĞŶƐ�
20kV/10kA Surge Protector
Part-Night Dimming
Part-Night Dimming
Part-Night Dimming
KƉƟĐƐ�ZŽƚĂƚĞĚ�ZŝŐŚƚ
KƉƟĐƐ�ZŽƚĂƚĞĚ�>ĞŌ
hƟůŝƚǇ�tĂƩĂŐĞ�>ĂďĞů


KƌĚĞƌŝŶŐ�/ŶĨŽƌŵĂƟŽŶ
Sample Catalog No. AR13 48N MV NW 5 BK 190 MSL3


Luminaire Data


Weight�� ϭϱ͘ϰ�ůďƐ�΀ϳ�ŬŐ΁
EPA� Ϭ͘ϰϳ�Ō2


 


Project


Type


Catalog No.


ARIETA® 13 Architectural LED Area Luminaire
�Zϭϯ�EͲ^ĞƌŝĞƐ�^ƉĞĐŝĮĐĂƟŽŶ��ĂƚĂ�^ŚĞĞƚ


Accessories*


BLS
RPA9


PTF19


PTF29


PTF49


WM9


BSK
LLPC10


SC
FSIR100


Enhanced Back Light Shield
Round Pole Adapter
^ƋƵĂƌĞ�WŽůĞ�dŽƉ�&ŝƩĞƌ�^ŝŶŐůĞ
^ƋƵĂƌĞ�WŽůĞ�dŽƉ�&ŝƩĞƌ�dǁŝŶ�Ăƚ�ϭϴϬΣ
^ƋƵĂƌĞ�WŽůĞ�dŽƉ�&ŝƩĞƌ�YƵĂĚ
Wall Mount
Bird Deterrent Spider Kit 
Long-Life Twist Lock Photocontrol
dǁŝƐƚ�>ŽĐŬ�^ŚŽƌƟŶŐ��ĂƉ
DŽƟŽŶ�^ĞŶƐŽƌ��ŽŶĮŐƵƌĂƟŽŶ�dŽŽů


Ύ�ĐĐĞƐƐŽƌŝĞƐ�ĂƌĞ�ŽƌĚĞƌĞĚ�ƐĞƉĂƌĂƚĞůǇ�ĂŶĚ�ŶŽƚ�ƚŽ�ďĞ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞĚ�ŝŶ�
ƚŚĞ�ĐĂƚĂůŽŐ�ŶƵŵďĞƌ�


ϭ���ůĂĐŬ͕��ĂƌŬ��ƌŽŶǌĞ͕�tŚŝƚĞ͕�'ƌĂǇ͕ �Žƌ�EĂƚƵƌĂů��ůƵŵŝŶƵŵ�ƐƚĂŶĚĂƌĚ͘����;Z�>ϲϬϮϮͿ�ŝƐ�ŽƵƌ�ŽƌŝŐŝŶĂů�ĚĂƌŬ�ďƌŽŶǌĞ͘���ϭ�
;Z�>ϴϬϭϵͿ�ŝƐ�Ă�ŶĞǁ�ĚĂƌŬ�ďƌŽŶǌĞ�ŽƉƟŽŶ͘��ŽŶƐƵůƚ�ĨĂĐƚŽƌǇ�ĨŽƌ�ŽƚŚĞƌ�ĮŶŝƐŚĞƐ͘�^ĞĞ�ƉĂŐĞ�Ϯ�ĨŽƌ�ƐƉĞĐŝĮĐĂƟŽŶƐ͘


Ϯ��^ƉĞĐŝĮĞĚ�ŽƵƚƉƵƚ�ĐŽĚĞ�ƐĞƚ�Ăƚ�ƚŚĞ�ĨĂĐƚŽƌǇ�ƐĞƚ͘�/ŶĐůƵĚĞƐ�ĮǆƚƵƌĞ�ŵŽƵŶƚĞĚ�ŽƵƚƉƵƚ�ƐĞůĞĐƚŽƌ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĞŶĂďůĞƐ�ĮĞůĚ�ĂĚũƵƐƚĂďůĞ�
light levels. 


ϯ��&ůƵƐŚ�ŵŽƵŶƚĞĚ�ĞŶŚĂŶĐĞĚ�ďĂĐŬ�ůŝŐŚƚ�ƐŚŝĞůĚ͕�ĨĂĐƚŽƌǇ�ŝŶƐƚĂůůĞĚ͘�


ϰ��EŽ�ĮĞůĚ�ĂĚũƵƐƚĂďůĞ�ŽƵƚƉƵƚ͘�^ƉĞĐŝĮĞĚ�ŽƵƚƉƵƚ�ĐŽĚĞ�ƐĞƚ�Ăƚ�ƚŚĞ�ĨĂĐƚŽƌǇ͘ �


ϱ��/ŶĐůƵĚĞƐ�ŽƵƚƉƵƚ�ƐĞůĞĐƚŽƌ�ƚŚĂƚ�ĞŶĂďůĞƐ�ĮĞůĚ�ĂĚũƵƐƚĂďŝůŝƚǇ�ŽĨ�ůŝŐŚƚ�ůĞǀĞůƐ͘�&ŝĞůĚ�ĐŚĂŶŐĞĂďůĞ�ĐŽŶŶĞĐƚŽƌƐ�ŝŶĐůƵĚĞĚ�ƚŽ�
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Letter of Intent 
 
From:           McFadden & Company 
  380 West Washington Avenue  
                     Madison, Wisconsin 53703                      
                    608.251.1350 – james@mcfadden.com 
 
To:  Dane County 
                     Department of Planning & Development 
  Room 116, City-County Building 
  210 Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd. 
                    Madison, Wisconsin 53703 
 
Date:   February 26, 2022 
 
Project: 533 Waterloo Road  
 
Reason for Request:  
 
          533 Waterloo (currently SFR-08) and 531 (HC) are functionally interdependent. 


They share a single private drive and both have structures that constructed for 
commercial purposes.  


 
The intent is to rezone 533 Waterloo from SFR-8 to HC to bring it in line with 
531Waterloo to make the improvements to the site and the existing structure 
necessary to support a small 34 vehicle used car dealership. 


 
Neighborhood Characteristics: 
 


There are six properties located between Waterloo Road to the north and 
Karem Road to the south sharing a private drive. They collectively supported a 
now shuttered rendering operation. 


 
533 Waterloo, the subject parcel, is 0.623 acre in area and currently has a 2,535 
SF open sided pole barn built as an equipment shed. 


 
531 Waterloo has six commercial buildings showing varying degrees of neglect 
on 2.2 acres.  
 
529 Waterloo has a single-family home owned and occupied by the applicant 
on a 0.6-acre property. It recently expanded and remodeled. 







 
527 Waterloo is 1.1-acre property with an existing rental duplex owned by the 
applicant. 
 
Immediately to the south on 534 Karem Drive. is single family residence on a 
1.9-acre property.  
 
To the immediate east is a currently undeveloped 6.2-acre property owned by 
St Mary’s Cemetery 


 
Operational Narrative: 
 


The business will be conducted between the hours of 9:00 AM and 5:00 PM 
Monday through Saturday. It is anticipated that there will be four or six 
customer visits per day and one or two full time employees on site at one time 
in addition to the owner. 


 
Approximately three vehicles will arrive on site daily, a third by truck and 
remainder driven in. These will be inspected on arrival and a determination 
made to service them for retail sale (a third) or for transport off site to a 
wholesaler or disposal (two thirds). The vehicles retained will be repaired and 
detailed. This typically takes three days. The prepped vehicles will be put on the 
sales lot where they will be sold within a week. It is anticipated that when fully 
operational there will be 20 to 24 vehicles on site for retail sale at any one time. 
The remainder of the parking stalls will be for vehicles awaiting transport off 
site. 


 
More than 4,000 SF of land will be disturbed. The erosion control and storm 
water management plans that include a new bioretention basin prepared by 
Burse Surveying & Engineering are attached.  
 
The property is not served by municipal water or sewer. A new well has been 
drilled on the 529 Waterloo property to serve the single-family residence at 529, 
the duplexes 525 & 527 as well as the subject property 533 Waterloo. A holding 
tank will be installed adjacent to the sales office/service garage. A letter from 
Madison & Dane County Public Health attesting that a holding tank is the only 
suitable system for this property is attached. 
 
The property will be accessed via a new twenty-foot wide driveway entry off of 
Waterloo.  
 







Two parking lots are proposed. There will be a sales lot between Waterloo 
and the shop sized for 38 vehicles of which three spaces one accessible are 
for customers and a second secured lot behind the sales/service building for 
the storage of vehicles being serviced.  
 
New site lighting will be installed. The sales lot will have four pole mounted 
fixtures and the storage lot three additional three building mounted wall 
packs. The driveway will be lighted a single pole mounted fixture All fixtures 
will be LED sharp cut off. Please see attached Lighting Plan and fixture cut 
sheets. 
 
The business will be screened from the residences to the east with a new 
decorative concrete block wall and the residentially zoned property to the 
south with a privacy fence. The two parking lots will also be screened from 
the Cemetery property to the west by eight-foot privacy fences. The two 
refuse dumpsters will be enclosed with a six-foot wood fence. New trees will 
be planted to the north of the sales lot to provide screening from Waterloo. 
Please see the Screening Plan attached 
 
A four by eight-foot sign will be mounted on the north side of the sales/service 
building. 
 
The business will deal exclusively with late model intact vehicles. Other than a 
small number of batteries which will be stored inside and recycled will be no 
hazardous materials on site. 
 


 







1. Stormwater management. You mentioned that Burse surveying is working on this for you and that the plans would likely impact your overall site plan due to the relatively small size of
the property.

2. Lighting. The county ordinance has the following minimum standard for lighting: “Except for lighting of the United States flag, any outdoor lighting associated with any permitted or
conditional use shall be directed downward and away from adjacent properties and public rights-of-way, and shall be designed to minimize ambient light spill.” There is a similar
requirement that applies to parking areas, as well. Given the concerns that have been raised, a lighting plan showing the lighting that will be installed and with photometric showing 0.5
footcandle at property line may be more appropriate. You noted that this is something you should be able to provide from your supplier.

3. Fencing / landscaping. You indicated that you’d be working on a more detailed plan for screening on the western property line. You may want to refer to the ordinance screening
requirements and standards, in section 10.102(12). Ditto for the requirements that apply to parking areas in section10.102(8)(d)9. 

4. Signage. The proposed 4’x10’ internally illuminated sign on a 10-foot pole seems out of character with the neighborhood. Possibly a small monument sign would be better.
5. Updates to site and operations plans. Update the site and operations plans as necessary to add detail regarding stormwater/lighting/screening, etc. Similarly, you mentioned that this

could result in changes to the total number of vehicles that may be offered for sale.
6. Sanitary facilities. Please verify with Dane County Environmental Health staff that plans for well and wastewater are sufficient and appropriate based on the use.

 
As we discussed, the March 8th work meeting of the ZLR committee is when we’re looking to take this up again. Please have updated materials submitted no later than Monday, February 28th.
I’ve cc’d Roger in case he has any additional comments or recommendations. 
 
Thanks,
Majid
 
Please note that the Dane County Planning & Development Department office is currently closed in response to the COVID-19 pandemic.

 
Staff are working remotely and can be reached via email during regular business hours.
This is the best way to communicate with me.
I will also check my work phone voicemail intermittently throughout business hours.

 
More information and updates can be found on our website: danecountyplanning.com
 
Majid Allan
Senior Planner, Dane County Planning & Development
210 Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd, room 116
Madison, WI 53703
allan@countyofdane.com 
Office: 608-267-2536 Cell: 608-720-0167
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